USC Shoah Foundation

The Institute for Visual History and Education

Visual History Archive (VHA) User Guide

http://vha.usc.edu

Contents

About the Visual History Archive (VHA) Application 1
Getting Started 1
LOGIN
Search
Collections
Advanced Search Types
Quick Search
Quick Search Spelling Suggestions
Quick Search Example
Search Results
Saving Results to a Project
Viewing Screen
Experience Groups Search
Global Search
Experience Group Example
Select Categories of Experiences
Choose an AND or OR Search
Saving Results to a Project
Index Search
Browsing Indexing Terms
Indexing Term & Definition
Searching for Indexing Terms
Selecting Indexing Terms
Specifying the Search Type and Segment Range
Search Results
People Search
Phonetic Matching
People Search Example
People/Relationship Popup Window
Places Search
Browsing Geographic Indexing Terms
Map Display of Geographic Indexing Terms
Selected Locations
Aggregate Display of Locations
Fixed Locations Filter
Searching for Indexed Locations
Zooming and Moving the Map50
Research Examples
Example 1: "How many rescuers were interviewed in Ukraine?"
Example 1: Thow many rescuers were interviewed in Okranie:
Example 2: "My research is on children's point of view at Terezin on the day when the Red Cross came and
visited. How do I find relative interviews?"
Example 4: "A researcher is looking for discussions of cultural life in Theresienstadt."
Example 7. 12 researcher is looking for discussions of cultural me in meresienstadt.



About the Visual History Archive (VHA) Application

USC Shoah Foundation's **Visual History Archive (VHA)** is a software application that allows users to search indexing data and view digital audiovisual testimonies in the USC Shoah Foundation's archive. The **VHA** provides a means for users to identify both whole testimonies of relevance, as well as specific segments within testimonies that relate to their area of interest.

Currently, the **VHA** provides access to data and video for more than 54,000 testimonies of survivors and witnesses of the Holocaust and other genocides. Most of the testimonies in the archive have been catalogued, indexed, and digitized to make them searchable and viewable through the **VHA**.

Getting Started

To access the **Visual History Archive (VHA)** search and viewing tool, open your favorite browser and navigate to the URL: <u>http://vha.usc.edu/</u>.

Note:

The VHA is compatible with most major browsers available on PCs and Macs. Please see the **System Requirements** on the **Login** screen for more details.

Login

When you first go to the **Visual History Archive**, you will be directed to the *Login* screen as pictured below.



On the *Login* screen, you must enter your *Username* and *Password*, and click *Log In*.

If you do not have a *Username* and *Password*, you must create your own. To proceed, click *Register* and fill in the appropriate information. You should choose a *Username* and *Password* that you will easily remember. By registering, you will be able to access your *Search History* and saved search results, called *Projects*, at a later time.

The *Login* page also offers the ability to retrieve a previously created (but forgotten) user name or password. Just click on *Forgot your username / password?* to go to the *Password Recovery* page. Once there, type in your email address and click *Submit* and the system immediately sends you an email with your current *Username* and *Password*.

Search

Once you successfully log in, the main *Search* screen appears as shown below. You can enter text in the highlighted search box and click *Search* to immediately begin to search. This search functions much like a web search engine and will be referred to as the *Quick Search* throughout this guide. The terms you enter will search on personal names, indexing terms (and their synonyms), and numbers representing interview codes.



COLLECTIONS

The USC Shoah Foundation Institute is committed to expanding its archive to include testimony from survivors and witnesses of other genocides and crimes against humanity, and to make such testimony available for educational use around the world, alongside its current collection of testimonies of Holocaust survivors and other witnesses.

Initially a repository of Holocaust testimony, the Visual History Archive has expanded to include testimonies from the Armenian Genocide that coincided with World War I, the 1937 Nanjing Massacre in China, the 1994 Genocide against the Tutsi in Rwanda, the Guatemalan Genocide of 1978-1996 and the Cambodian Genocide of 1975-1979.

In addition, under USC Shoah Foundation's Preserving the Legacy program, collections of Holocaust testimonies recorded and owned by other organizations are being added to the Archive. Partners in the program include Jewish Family and Children's Services (JFCS) Holocaust Center; a consortium of nine Canadian archives, which represent the Jewish experience across Canada; and collections from Holocaust Memorial Center Zekelman Family Campus, Holocaust Museum Houston, and Florida Holocaust Museum.

The interviews have been conducted in 62 countries and 41 languages. Each collection adds context for the others, providing multiple pathways to learn from the eyewitnesses of history across time, locations, cultures and sociopolitical circumstances.

Additional collections will be added as we continue to work with partners globally.

ADVANCED SEARCH TYPES

Instead of the *Quick Search*, you can select one of the advanced search types available on the main *Search* screen: *Experience Group*, *Index*, *People* and *Places*. A brief description of each of the advanced searches follows.

Collections: European Holocaust, 1939-1945 USC Shoah Foundation (51,438) Florida Holocaust Museum (25) Holocaust Memorial Center Zekelman Family Campus (25) Holocaust Museum Houston (272) JFCS Holocaust Center (912) Canadian Collections (1,232) V Armenian Genocide, 1915-1923 Armenian Film Foundation (333) USC Shoah Foundation (1) Nanjing Massacre, 1937 USC Shoah Foundation (30) Genocide against the Tutsi in Rwanda, 1994 Holocaust Museum Houston (1) Kigali Genocide Memorial (70) USC Shoah Foundation (15) Guatemalan Genocide, 1978-1996 Fundación de Antropologia Forense de Guatemala (9)USC Shoah Foundation (1) Cambodian Genocide, 1975-1979 USC Shoah Foundation (5)

The *Experience Group* search allows you to search basic biographical information, including city and country of birth, religious identity, places of incarceration such as camps and ghettos, and so on, for interviewees categorized within different Experience Groups within the broader collections of *European Holocaust*, 1939-1945, Armenian Genocide, 1915-1923, Nanjing Massacre, 1937, Rwandan Tutsi Genocide, 1994, Guatemalan Genocide, 1978-1996, or Cambodian Genocide, 1975-1979 testimonies.

The *Index* search allows you to search for segments of testimonies that discuss specific topics, using more than 60,000 geographic and experiential indexing terms. Although the majority of the indexing terms are related to geographic locations, a rich collection of indexing terms has been assigned to identify important or common aspects of interviewees' diverse experiences. Experiential indexing terms include terms such as *camp living conditions, flight decisions*, and thousands of others. The *Index* search results will take you directly to the relevant segments of the testimony videos.

The *People* search allows you to search for a specific name among all names associated with the testimonies. Names that are searched include those that were recorded in the pre-interview questionnaires as well as those of people who were mentioned during the interviews. You can find a testimony for a specific interviewee or a testimony that refers to a specific person.

The *Places* search allows you to find segments of testimonies in which geographic locations such as camps, ghettos, cities, and towns have been indexed by browsing, searching, or zooming in on a Google Map.

Quick Search

When conducting a *Quick Search* using the highlighted search box pictured below, simply enter one or more terms of interest in the text box. The search will look for matches on personal names, index terms (and their synonyms), and numbers representing interview codes and/or years.

Select the desired search type using the option buttons for *All Words*, *Any Words* or *Exact Phrase*. The search type defaults to *All Words*, so if you enter more than one term, the VHA will search for individual

Enter indexin	g terms, names, n	umbers or interview	codes	Search	Testimonies: 54,369
All Words	O Any Words	C Exact Phrase	~		

testimonies whose associated indexing data contains all the entered terms. That is, selecting the search type *All Words* performs an AND search between the entered terms.

Note:

Quick Search is not case sensitive.

If you select the search type *Any Words*, the VHA will search for individual testimonies whose associated indexing data contains any of the words. That is, selecting the search type *Any Words* performs an OR search between the entered terms.

If you select the search type *Exact Phrase*, the VHA will search for individual testimonies whose associated indexing data contains the exact phrase.

QUICK SEARCH FILTERS

When using the *Quick Search*, by default *All* collections of testimonies are selected. On the left side of the page as illustrated below, you can also choose to search one or more particular collections of testimonies as well as specific organizations for the collections.



In addition to *Collections*, you can also filter by *Language*, *Gender* and *Experience Group*. To see these filters, click on the caret symbol next to the *Exact Phrase* text as highlighted in the red box above.

When you make your filter selections, the number of relevant *Testimonies* (shown to the right of the *Search* button) updates dynamically. Conveniently, you can go directly to the relevant testimony results by hitting the *Search* button—you do not need to enter any search terms in the search box.

Note:

Depending on the terms you enter in the *Quick Search*, your search may return more results than are easily managed; therefore, it is usually best to specify a more limiting search type of *All Words* or *Exact Phrase*.

QUICK SEARCH SPELLING SUGGESTIONS

The *Quick Search* incorporates a spelling suggestion feature that checks the word or words that users type against a dictionary of all words appearing in the USC Shoah Foundation database, including indexing terms and their synonyms, names of people, and numbers representing interview codes and years. If no match is found in the dictionary, then alternative suggestions that users can select will be presented as shown at right

aushwitz	
Did you mean?	x
aushpitz	
auschwitz	
auschpitz	
rashwitz	
bauchwitz	
tausowitz	
more »	

QUICK SEARCH EXAMPLE

As an example, enter the search terms, *Bedzin, ghetto*, and *hunger* in the text box separated by spaces as pictured below, and leave the *Collections* option on the left of the page set to the default *All*. Also, keep the search type to the default *All Words*.

USC Shoah Foundation Visual History Archive	
	Search
Collections:	
All	Select a collection and enter a search term below
European Holocaust, 1939-1945	Bedzin ghetto hunger Search Testimonies:
USC Shoah Foundation (51,438)	
Florida Holocaust Museum (25)	● All Words O Any Words O Exact Phrase 💙
Holocaust Memorial Center Zekelman Family Campus (25)	
Holocaust Museum Houston (272)	Or use one of the advanced search options below
□ JFCS Holocaust Center (912)	
Canadian Collections (1,232) V	Experience Groups
Armenian Genocide, 1915-1923	Find testimonies using biographical and interview information.
Armenian Film Foundation (333)	
USC Shoah Foundation (1)	Index
Nanjing Massacre, 1937	Find segments of testimonies by searching or browsing Search
USC Shoah Foundation (30)	indexing terms in the USC Shoah Foundation Thesaurus.
Genocide against the Tutsi in Rwanda, 1994	People
Holocaust Museum Houston (1)	
Kigali Genocide Memorial (70)	that refers to a specific person by name.
USC Shoah Foundation (15)	
🔲 Guatemalan Genocide, 1978-1996	
Fundación de Antropologia Forense de Guatemala	Places
(9)	Find segments of testimonies about geographic locations by Search
USC Shoah Foundation (1)	browsing, searching, or zooming in on a Google Map.
Cambodian Genocide, 1975-1979	
USC Shoah Foundation (5)	

After typing the search term, the *Testimonies* count is displayed to the right of the text box. As shown, 69 testimonies match the search criteria. Keep in mind that for searches using more general search topics, there may be thousands of results and it takes a little longer to display the *Testimonies* count.

Click *Search* to see the results of the search.

SEARCH RESULTS

The *Search Results* screen that displays next as pictured below lists the first 5 testimony results of the 69 results found. Each of the results displays a small photo of the interviewee, the *Name* of the interviewee, the *Language* of the interview, the *Transcript* and/or *Video* availability status of the interview, the *Experience* group of the interviewee, the *Collection* holder and indexing terms that match the search terms you entered in the order they were entered.



On this page you also have the option to further refine your search by using the *Transcript Available*, *Collection*, *Language*, *Gender*, *Experience Group*, and *Projects Filter*. For this example, limiting the search is not necessary. For a full discussion of these filters, see the **Filtering Search Results** section on page 11.

Video and Transcript Availability Status

Beginning in July 2016, the **Visual History Archive** was changed to play all testimony videos from online (the 'cloud'). So all videos are now viewable immediately and will show the status *Video Available*.

To proceed to the *Viewing Screen*, click on the photo icon or the name of the interviewee.

ProQuest and USC Shoah Foundation have begun a long-term project to transcribe all testimonies in the archive. Transcripts will be added to the **Visual History Archive** as they become available, so you will see the number of available transcripts grow steadily in the months and years to come.

Currently, German-language transcripts are available for 900 German-language testimonies. The German transcripts were produced by our colleagues at Freie Universität Berlin.

When a transcript is available for a testimony in the results list, a status of *Transcript Available* will be displayed.

Note:

Available transcripts are in the original language spoken in the interview. English-language translations of non-English testimonies have not been created.

Matching Search Terms

In order to see all of the indexing terms, names, and numbers for a testimony that match the search term(s), click on the caret symbol next to the highlighted term as pictured at right.

The indexing terms are listed in the order that the words in the search term were entered. Also, for easy



reference, the indexing terms are highlighted in the same colors as the search term words. Next to the indexing terms are the segment numbers in which the terms were indexed.

Clicking on the segment number takes you to the *Viewing Screen*, and the video jumps to that segment in the testimony where the topic of the indexing term is discussed.

Placing a mouse cursor over any highlighted indexing term displays a popup window with the thesaurus definition of that term. In the current example, the definition for *camp hunger* is displayed.

Note:

If the search term matches a synonym of an indexing term, the preferred label for the term will display as the matching text—not the synonym. Please see the *FAQs* under the *Help* menu for more information.

Biographical Profile Window

Using this feature, you are able to view the biographical information of the interviewee directly on the *Search Results* page, without having to go to the *Viewing Screen*. Simply place the mouse cursor over the image of the interviewee and a side window containing the biographical information gets displayed on the right of the screen as pictured below.



You can use the scrollbar on the right side of this window to scroll through the information at the bottom. In addition to viewing the biographical information, you can use the *Print* icon located at the top right of the side window to print it.

Find Interviewee

While on the *Search Results* page, you can further refine your search by using the *Find Interviewee* feature to locate a testimony of a

Find by First Name	Cast Nam	e lola		×
Lola Fontak	F	English	Jewish Survivor	
Lola Pila	F	English	Jewish Survivor	
Lola Roth	F	English	Jewish Survivor	

particular interviewee. Once you click on the *Find Interviewee* link, a search window opens up as shown above, allowing you to enter an interviewee's first or last name. Even if you type in only the first few letters of a name, the search brings back matching results. You can click on a survivor's name to go directly to the *Viewing Screen*.

Sorting Search Results

If you have many results, you can choose to sort the results by *Last Name*, *First Name*, *Language*, *Experience* or *Transcript Availability*. By default, the results are sorted by *Relevance*; thus, results most relevant to the entered search terms are sorted to the top.

To sort the results by a different criteria, click the down arrow to the right of the *Sort by* drop down list, as pictured above right, and select the desired sort criteria.

Filtering Search Results

In order to narrow a very large result set, you can use the *Transcript Available, Collection, Language, Gender, Experience Group* and *Projects Filter* as shown at right to further refine your search and narrow your results.

Checking the *Transcript Available* checkbox will limit your search criteria to only those testimonies that have transcripts. Keep in mind that only a limited number of transcripts are currently available. For a full explanation of transcript availability, see the *Video and Transcript Availability Status* section on page 9.

To apply any of the other filters, just click on the down arrow and choose a specific filter. Using the *Projects* filter allows you to search within the results of a saved project.

Sort by Relevance Relevance Transcript Availability Last Name First Name Language Experience

Filter	
Transcript Available	
Collection	
ALL	•
Language	
ALL	•
Gender	
ALL	•
Experience Group	
ALL	٧
Projects	
SELECT ONE	~

Note:

For the *Quick* and *Index Searches*, the filter is located on the main page as well as the *Search Results* page, and for the *Experience Groups, People*, and *Places Searches*, the filter is available on the *Search Results* page only.

Paging and Results/Page

To see more results on a page and to easily navigate through a large set of results, you can use the *Paging* and *Results/Page* features as pictured at right. The *Paging* feature allows you to move quickly to a desired page of results. By default, 5 results are

displayed per page. To see more results per page, select a larger number from the *Results/Page* drop down list as shown here.

5	-	Results/Page
5		
10		nd Interviewee
20		
50		ļ



SAVING RESULTS TO A PROJECT

From the results screen, you can save the results of your search to a project so you can return to the saved results at a later time. To save the results from this example, click the *save to project* button, and you will be taken to a screen as pictured below where you can save the results in an *Existing Project* or in a *New Project*.

	About U	s Search	Search History	Projects	Terms Of Use	Help	Contact
							VHA Demo Logout
USC Shoah Fou	Indation						Projects Save to Project
Quick Search Filter			ilts to an existing projec	t, choose a proje	ect from the pull-down	menu and (lick "save" button.
Language: All	© Exist	ing Project					
Gender: All	• New	Project					
Experience Group: None	Name	Bedzin ghetto hu	inger				
Project: None Selected Text All Words Bedzin ghetto hunger Search Results Testimonies: 69	Note	Share this pro Quick Search Filtor Collection All La Selected Text (A Bedzin ghetto hi	nguage All Gender All E Il Words)		Protect project Passy project.None	vord	
	save	can	cel				

For this example, type in a name for the project that identifies the search results, such as *Bedzin*, *ghetto*, *hunger* and then click *save*.

The *Note* section, by default, displays basic information about the search – which search type was used, the filters and search terms. You can leave the *Note* field as is, or you can edit it and enter your own notes.

Note:

When you save testimony or segment results to an existing project, they are appended to the existing project's results; they do not replace them.

Sharing a Project

You can share a project with other users by clicking on the *Share this project* checkbox. Sharing a project allows all **VHA** users to view the search results in your project. They are not able to delete the project or change its results.

Checking *Share project* activates the *Protect project* feature. Assigning a password to a project is optional and if you choose to protect a project with a password, only the users that know the password will be able to view the search results saved in that project. In this example we chose to share the project but not protect it with a password.

Note:

The *Share this project* feature is ideal for professors who want students to look at specific testimonies or segments, and for library support staff to pre-prepare materials for researchers.

Once you click *save*, the project *Bedzin, ghetto, hunger* gets added to your list of projects as pictured below, which you can later access by clicking the *Projects* link at the top of the page.

OSearch project owner					
My Projects (4)	Ne	w Delete Print			
Bookmarked Projects (0)		Project Name	Date 🖬	Results	Notes
Shared Projects (1041)		Bedzin ghetto hunger	02/03/2017	69	Quick Search []
Aaron Levine (1)		🚇 canada interviewees in Birkenau	12/06/2016	794	Experience Groups Search []
Abby McLachlan (2)		Terezin children	08/18/2016	332	Experience Groups Search []
Abigail Parsons (1) Adam Trinh (1)		Born in Portugal	06/26/2012	3	Biographical Search []

The *Projects* page is organized using folders and by default, *My Projects*, the projects created by you are displayed. The projects table contains basic information about the project – its name, the date of creation, the results count and the notes. The shared or password protected projects are displayed with the *Sharing Read Only* and *Protected* icons. In this view you can delete a selected project, print, or sort the list of your projects.

Bookmarked and Shared Projects

Click on the *Shared Projects* folder to see all projects shared by other users, including the ones shared by you. Projects that have been shared are grouped and sorted alphabetically by first name, then last name of users.

While viewing the shared projects, you are also able to **Bookmark** a specific project. Keep in mind that a bookmarked project disappears if the owner of the project "un-shares" or deletes the project. In addition, the owner can make modifications to the project, such as deleting or adding results, so if you want to keep the original results, it is best to copy those results to your own separate project.

Note:

When you share a project with other *VHA* users, they can only read the results. They cannot delete the project or the results in the project.

In order to see shared projects created by a specific user, you can click on any name displayed below the *Shared Projects* folder, or you can use the *Search project owner* feature as pictured below.

USC Shoah F	ound Jisual Hi							Projects My Projects
Search project owner		_						
My Projects (4)		Ne	w Dele	te Print				
Bookmarked Projects (0)			Proje	ct Name	Date 🗖	Results	Notes	
Shared Projects (1041)			Bedz	In ghetto hunger	02/03/2017	69	Quick Search []	
Aaron Levine (1)			📮 cana	da interviewees in Birkenau	12/06/2016	794	Experience Groups Search []	
Abby McLachlan (2)	1		Terez	in children	08/18/2016	332	Experience Groups Search []	
Abigall Parsons (1)			Born	in Portugal	06/26/2012	3	Biographical Search []	
Adam Trinh (1)								
adam vasquez (1)								
Adam Seipp (2)								
Adel Sztrokay (1)								
Adrien Csitkei (1)								
Adrien Dallaire (1)								
Adrienn Mustos (1)								
Agata Jujeczka (1)								
Agnes Szabo (1)								
Agnes Bancsik (2)								
Agnieszka Wieters- Wierzcholska (3)								
Aida Fogel (2)								
Akasha Buzov (2)								
Albert Lichtblau (1)								
alberta bezzan (1)								
Alec Willison (1)								
Alejandro Baer (1)								
Aletta Forras Biro (1)								
alex george (1)								
Aloy Schoor (1)	*							

Copying Projects

To make a copy of an unprotected shared project or one of your own projects, simply check the box next to the project name and click the *Copy* link. This will add a copy of the project in *My Projects* which you can then edit.

Viewing Results of a Saved Project

To see the results that are saved in a project, click on the name of the project. In this example, clicking on *Bedzin, ghetto, hunger* takes you to the screen pictured on the next page where the testimony or segment results are displayed. The saved results table displays all of the results along with some basic information about the testimonies. You can sort the results by clicking on any of the column headers.

You can also use the functions available directly above the table to *Delete*, *Copy* or *Move* selected results. These options can be very helpful for managing your results as you do further research.

USC Shoah Fou	Sual History Archive My Projects - Bedzin ghe							Projects
OSearch project owner	1							
My Projects (4)		Project name	Bedzin ç	hetto hunger				
Bookmarked Projects (0)			69 Resul	ts in this project		02/03/20	017 Created	d
Shared Projects (1041)			Share	this project	Prote	ct project Password		
Aaron Levine (1) Abby McLachlan (2) Ablgall Parsons (1) Adam Trinh (1) adam vasquez (1)		Notes	Careboo di Gregoria		nder:All Experience:None	project:None	•	Save
Adam Scipp (2) Adel Sztrokay (1) Adrien Csitkei (1) Adrien Dallaire (1)		69 Testimony R Delete Copy	Move) ProQuest Documents Print Export CSV(F Language	s Excel) Export XML > Experience	(ML for Scalar Segment #	0 Res	sults selected
Adrienn Mustos (1) Agata Jujeczka (1)		📄 °adah Halperi	n	Hebrew	Jewish Survivor	All	24675	Video Available
Agnes Szabo (1) Agnes Bancsik (2)		📋 'aharon Feldt	erg	Hebrew	Jewish Survivor	All	7165	Video Available
Agnieszka Wieters-		'alter Shyarts	futer	Hebrew	Jewish Survivor	All	26716	Video Available
Wierzcholska (3) Aida Fogel (2)		Alexander Fe	rson	English	Jewish Survivor	All	4576	Video Available
Akasha Buzov (2) Albert Lichtblau (1)		📄 Anna Rudzin		English	Jewish Survivor	All	5407	Video Available
alberta bezzan (1)		📄 Bela Lustma	n	Portuguese	Jewish Survivor	All	32008	Video Available
Alec Willison (1) Alejandro Baer (1)		📋 Belah Danan		Hebrew	Jewish Survivor	All	34987	Video Available
Aletta Forras Biro (1)		Carl Strochild		English	Jewish Survivor	All	52591	Video Available
alex george (1)	*	Carol Schwar	17	English	Jawish Survivor	ΔII	5604	Video 😿

For example, after you view individual results in a *Project*, you may decide that they are more relevant for another research topic and move or copy them to a different *Project*. To move or copy the

results, simply select them and then click on *Copy* or *Move*. A dialogue box then opens up as pictured at right in which you can choose to copy or move the results to a *New Project* or to an existing project in *My Projects*.

Move Selected Te	stimonies	s/Segments to Project
 My Projects New Project 		
1	01/	Cancel

The *Print*, *Export*.*CSV* (*Excel*) and *Export*.*XML* actions apply to the entire results list not to selected results. The same information shown in the results table is printed and/or exported.

Moreover, on the *Project* page, you can change the name of your project, its notes, and whether or not the project is shared or protected by a password. Just remember to click *save* to save the changes.

In addition to the list of saved testimony and segment results listed under the *Testimony Records* tab, document results from ProQuest databases to which your institution subscribes that you have saved that are related to the the testimony or segment indexing data being viewed. will appear under the *ProQuest Documents* tab. For more information on related ProQuest results, see the **ProQuest Search In Bio Profile** and **ProQuest Search in Segment** sections on page 20.

Adding Testimony Notes

Clicking on the *Edit Note* icon located at the right of a result saved in a project opens up a *Notes* text box as pictured below. Then you can enter notes for that specific testimony or segment.

Delete	Copy Move P	rint Export .CSV(Excel) Export .XML X	(ML for Scalar	0 Res	ults selected
Tape	Label 🖾	Language	Experience	Segment #	Int Code	Available
Sonia	n Majtlis	English	Jewish Survivor	All	29370	Video Available
🔵 Tsvi I	Birenb'aum	Hebrew	Jewish Survivor	All	49632	Video Available
Notes	is					Save Cancel
] Tsvi	Tsur	Hebrew	Jewish Survivor	All	36091	Video Available
) Walte	er Storozum	English	Jewish Survivor	All	33086	Video Available
) Wilhe	Im Kom	English	Jewish Survivor	All	19014	Video Available
Willy	Woznica	English	Jewish Survivor	All	54402	Video Available
Va'al	ou Obtroutnor	Hobrow	Jourish Cumilitar	All	44064	Video 🏹

Once you add *Notes* text and *Save* it, the first line of text is displayed directly underneath the result as shown below.

	Tape Label 🗖	Language	Experience	Segment #	Int Code	
0	Sha'ul 'oren	Hebrew	Jewish Survivor	All	45996	Available
	Sonia Majtlis	English	Jewish Survivor	All	29370	Video Available
D	Tsvi Birenb'aum	Hebrew	Jewish Survivor	All	49632	Video Available
	The survivor was born in Prosz	owice, Poland.				
	Tsvi Tsur	Hebrew	Jewish Survivor	All	36091	Video Available

The **Biographical Profile Window** feature as described on page 10 is also available for Project results. Just place the mouse cursor over the name of the survivor and the profile information is displayed.

To view a testimony or segment saved in a project, click the name of the interviewee. You will then advance to the *Viewing Screen* for that testimony or segment result.

VIEWING SCREEN

To continue the previous example, click on the photo icon or the name of *Erna Bratt* in the search results. You will be taken to the full *Viewing Screen* as pictured below.



The full *Viewing Screen* has the same functionality for all search types. The main functions available on the *Viewing Screen* are discussed below.

Beginning in July 2016, the **Visual History Archive** was changed to play all testimony videos from online (the 'cloud'). So all videos are now viewable immediately. The video will appear and play in the video player located in the center of the screen.

The video player has the controls to play, pause, stop the video and adjust the volume. You can also use other video player options that are available by right-clicking the mouse over the video player.

Information Display

Below the *Viewing Screen* is a window that displays indexing data associated with the testimony being viewed. Click on the links to the left of the window as pictured below, to change the information presented. The function of each link is discussed below.

Segments

The default display mode, *Segments*, displays segment numbers along with indexing terms and names of people who were associated with those segments during the indexing process. Some segments have no assigned indexing terms because a topic may not have been discussed in sufficient detail, or, when the discussion spans several segments, the relevant indexing terms have been applied only once near the beginning of the discussion. As pictured below, placing a mouse cursor over an indexing term, in this case *family life*, activates the thesaurus definition popup window for that term.

Segments Biographical Profile ProQuest Search in Bio Profile ProQuest Search in Segment Indexing Terms in Testimony People in Testimony	Segment#: 4 + PQ • Dabrowa Górnicza (Poland) family life family life family life Poland 192 Aspects of family interactions such as relationships with immediate family members, family daily routines, and visit: family members and relatives.	
Search in Testimony	Segment#: 5 +	
Donor Recognition	Segment#: 6 + PQ Josel Sztainfeld - brothers, biological	

To view the segment of video where a particular topic is discussed during the interview, click on the segment number that contains the relevant indexing term. For example, as shown above, clicking on *Segment #4* takes you to the point in the interview where the interviewee discusses *family life*.

Saving a Segment to a Project

If you would like to save a specific segment to a project, click on the plus icon next to the segment number, which displays the *Save Segment to Project* window as pictured at right.

You can choose to save the segment to an existing project, by clicking *My Projects* and then selecting a project from your list of projects in the down arrow menu. Or you can choose to save the selected segment to a new project, by clicking *New Project* and entering a name for the new project.



In this example, *Segment #4* is saved to the *Bedzin, ghetto, hunger* project. Click on the *Projects* link, and then click on that project's name. As you can see below, the saved segment is now a result of the project.

70 Testimony Records	ProQuest Document	ts			
Delete Copy Move	Print Export .CSV(Excel) Export .XML)	KML for Scalar	0 Res	ults selected
🔳 Tape Label 🖪	Language	Experience	Segment #	Int Code	
Elias Burstyn	English	Jewish Survivor	All	6969	Video Available
Erna Bratt	English	Jewish Survivor	All	20879	Video Available
📄 Erna Bratt	English	Jewish Survivor	4	20879	Video Available
📄 Felah Trayman	Hebrew	Jewish Survivor	All	43151	Video Available
Felix Plawner	English	Jewish Survivor	All	24450	Video Available

Biographical Profile

The *Biographical Profile* is the next option available in the menu on the left as pictured below. The *Biographical Profile* contains basic biographical information about the interviewee that was collected from the interviewee in a pre-interview questionnaire, as well as from the actual interview. You can scroll through the displayed data using the up and down arrows on the scroll bar to the right of the window.

Segments	3:01 / 29:42	co 🛃 😒	FI
Biographical Profile	Interview Code 22478		
ProQuest Search in Bio Profile ProQuest Search in Segment	Date of Interview Nov 10, 1996		
Indexing Terms in Testimony People in Testimony	Language of Interview German		
Search in Testimony Donor Recognition	Interviewer Name		•

Information related to the interview, like the *Interview Code*, *Date of Interview*, *Language of Interview* and so on is displayed first, followed by information more specific to the interviewee and her experiences.

Note:

Each interview has a unique *Interview Code*, shown at the top of the *Biographical Profile*, to help identify the specific testimony; thus, if two or more interviewees have the same name, the *Interview Code* distinguishes them.

Transcript

The *Transcript* link is the next option available in the menu on the left as pictured below for testimonies which have transcripts. If a testimony that you are viewing does not have a transcript, then the *Transcript* link will not be displayed. In this example, a German-language testimony is being viewed which does have a transcript.



Currently, German-language transcripts are available for 900 German-language testimonies. The German transcripts were produced by our colleagues at Freie Universität Berlin.

ProQuest and USC Shoah Foundation have begun a long-term project to transcribe all testimonies in the archive. Transcripts will be added to the **Visual History Archive** as they become available, so you will see the number of available transcripts grow steadily in the months and years to come.

Note:

Available transcripts are in the original language spoken in the interview. English-language translations of non-English testimonies have not been created.

In the example pictured, the transcript appears in the box below the video. *Transcript Auto-Scroll* is checked by default, so the words being spoken will be highlighted in red and will continue to track what's spoken in the video as it plays.

You can search the transcript by typing a word or words in the search box above the transcript. In this example, I searched on the word 'arbeit'. All matching words are highlighted in yellow in the transcript, and the *Transcript Search Results* pop-up window shows the tapes and timecodes within the testimony where 'arbeit' is spoken. You can click on a timecode link to jump to that point in the video and transcript.

Each testimony with a transcript will have closed captions available in the language of the interview that you can turn on by clicking on the CC icon (closed caption) below the video. When turned on, the closed captions will be displayed across the bottom of the video as pictured above and will track what is spoken.

ProQuest Search in Bio Profile

Clicking the *ProQuest Search in Bio Profile* link will show results from ProQuest databases to which your institution subscribes that are related to the biographical profile information for the testimony being viewed.

Biographical Profile	PQ Full Testimony	1-20 / 36,225 Records 🔻
Transcript ProQuest Search in Bio Profile ProQuest Search in Segment	 Book Published By Holocaus Persons Camps PR Newswire (Jan 22, 2001) 	t Museum Details Life In Displaced
Indexing Terms in Testimony People in Testimony Search In Testimony Donor Recognition	lawyers looking to Canada fo	ousand. Suit aims to recover oles during Nazi occupation; U.S. r Polish survivors of Holocaust: alms to recover property taken from

You can filter the ProQuest results by clicking on the filter icon next to the number of records. Currently the results can be filtered by language and source type.

In addition, individual ProQuest results can be saved in Projects by clicking on the plus sign (+) next to the result.

Clicking on a ProQuest result will open a new browser tab to the ProQuest platform page for that result. Users can work on the ProQuest platform pages as usual and then return to the VHA tab when ready to continue in the VHA.

ProQuest Search in Segment

Clicking the *ProQuest Search in Segment* link will show results from ProQuest databases to which your institution subscribes that are related to the indexing data for the testimony segment being viewed.

You can work with the ProQuest results as described in the **ProQuest Search in Bio Profile** section above.

Indexing Terms in Testimony

By clicking on *Indexing Terms in Testimony*, you are able to view a list of indexing terms ordered alphabetically with the segment numbers in which they were indexed as shown at right. When you find an indexing term of interest, just click on the segment number and the video on the *Viewing Screen* jumps directly to that segment.

People in Testimony

When you click on *People in Testimony*, you are able to view a list of names of all the people associated with the testimony, including their relationship to the interviewee, and the segment number in which the people are mentioned as pictured at right. The names of people were taken from the pre-interview questionnaire or from the actual interview.

Segments	A) 8:35 / 29:42
Biographical Profile	1994 photographs (stills)
Transcript ProQuest Search in Bio Profile	98
ProQuest Search in Segment	bombardments 78
Indexing Terms in Testimony People in Testimony	camp brutal treatment 45
Search in Testimony Donor Recognition	camp forced labor 38

Segments	() 8:35 / 29:42
Biographical Profile Transcript	Jakob Feldbaum - brothers, biological
ProQuest Search in Bio Profile ProQuest Search in Segment	Kuttner - grandfathers, paternal 93
Indexing Terms in Testimony People in Testimony	Marica* - prisoners 62
Search in Testimony Donor Recognition	Max Kuttner - husbands

If you would like to view a segment of a video in which a particular person is discussed, just click on the number listed underneath that person's name. For example, clicking on *Segment #14*, takes you to that point in the interview when the interviewee discusses her father *Blima Rakowski*.

Note:

An asterisk (*) after a name indicates a phonetic spelling. Brackets [] around a name indicate that it is an assumption; for example, a child's last name might not be mentioned in a testimony, but it is likely the same as her parents' name.

Search in Testimony

You can use the *Search in Testimony* option to search for an indexing term or a name. Once you click on it, the *Search in This Testimony* text box displays. You can enter any word(s) or name and click *Search*. In the example shown below, searching on the word *family* brought back the indexing terms *extended family members* and others. As described previously, clicking on a highlighted segment number takes you directly to that segment of the video.

Biographical Profile	Search in Testimony	family		
Transcript	Keyword			
roQuest Search in Bio Profile	extended family members			
ProQuest Search In Segment	92 93 94			
Indexing Terms in Testimony	post-World War II family photographs (stills)			
People in Testimony	50			
Search in Testimony	pre-World War II family			
Donor Recognition	91 92 93 94			

Other Links

On the right side of the data display window below the video as pictured at right there are several other options that allow you to perform useful actions related to navigating your search results, changing the data display, and saving the current search result. The function of each link is described next.

Maximize/Minimize Data

The window, where data for Segments, Biographical Profile, Transcript, ProQuest Search in Bio Profile, ProQuest Search in Segment, Indexing Terms in Testimony, People in Testimony, Search in Testimony and Donor Recognition is displayed, is normally small. You can expand it to see more data at once by clicking on the Maximize/Minimize Data link. Click on the Maximize/Minimize Data link again to return to the normal view.

Note:

When you maximinze the window while a video is playing, the video will continue to play.

Next/Previous Result

After clicking *Next Result* or *Previous Result* the *Viewing Screen* displays the next or previous testimony or segment in the results list. These links are not active when you view the results within a project.

Back to Search Results

Clicking the Back to Search Results link takes you back to the list of testimony or segment results.

For more details on the results screen, see the **Search Results** section on page 8.

New Search

Clicking the *New Search* link takes you to the main *Search* screen.

For a full discussion of the main *Search* screen, see the **Search** section on page 3.

Save to Projects

Click the *Save to Projects* link to save the segment or testimony result currently on the *Viewing Screen* to a *Project*. You are able to save the specific segment or testimony to

Save Testimony	to Projec	t	
 My Projects New Project 	Bed	lzin ghetto hunger	٣
	OK	Cancel	

an existing or a new project. Clicking the My Projects option opens up a list of your existing projects.



When saving a result to a *Project* from the *Viewing Screen*, the segment that you are viewing in the video is irrelevant. Only the specific result that you clicked in your list of results on the *Search Results* screen (before advancing to the *Viewing Screen*) will be saved.

For more information on saving results, see the Saving Results to a Project section on page 12.

Segments

Interview Code

Date of Interview Nov 10, 1996

Language of Interview German

Interviewer Name

Length of Interview

Location of Interview Tel Aviv, Tel Aviv, Israel

Rachel Kuttner

Experience Group

Jewish Survivor

01:43:56

Interviewee

Gender Female

22478

Indexing Terms

People

Transcript

Print Testimony

To print the testimony information that's viewable on the *Viewing Screen* page – biographical information, indexing terms and people's names, click on *Print Testimony*, and a new window as pictured at right opens displaying the information along with a default print dialog.

In addition, you are able to customize what information is included in the report by choosing among the *Segments*, *Indexing Terms*, *People*, and *Transcript* options, located at the top of the window. By default, all options are checked and the indexing term and people information is organized and displayed by segments.

Video and Slide Show

The *Video* and *Slide Show* option buttons, as pictured at right, located at the upper right of the *Viewing Screen* allow you to toggle between viewing the video and viewing a slide show of still images from the interview. If the *Slide Show* option is grayed out, then the corresponding vslide show for a testimony is not available.



Frequently, near the end of the interview, interviewees presented family photographs, documents, and artifacts from the prewar, wartime, and postwar periods to be videotaped. Still images extracted from the video of these items are presented in the *Slide Show*.

To view the *Slide Show*, click on the *Slide Show* option button (when available). Keep in mind that the video will stop playing when you click *Slide Show*.

To return to viewing the video, click on the *Video* option button.

Video Navigation

To move forward or backward within an interview, you can use the controls available on the video player or the options built into the interface.

To jump to the beginning of a different tape within the video, use the dropdown menu next to *Tape*, as shown at right, located at the right of the *Viewing Screen*. Click on the down arrow and choose the desired tape.

The videotapes that were used to film the original Shoah Foundation interviews had about a 30-minute capacity; therefore, multiple tapes were often used to videotape one interview. For instance, the average interview length in the archive is about 2 hours and 10 minutes, which requires 5 tapes. The numbers of the digital video files correspond to the numbers of the original analog tapes from which they were created.

Map

A small, embedded Google map is displayed to the right of the video, as pictured here, that shows many geographic indexing term locations, including cities, towns, villages, ghettos, and camps, discussed in the testimony being viewed. This enables users to quickly see where experiences being discussed took place.

The map can be enlarged and controlled easily like a normal Google map, zooming in and out and dragging the map to show different areas.







Clicking on one of the location icons will instantly enlarge the map in a popup window and show the definition of the geographic indexing term in a balloon as pictured above.

Hyperlink segment numbers to which the indexing term was assigned are also displayed in the balloon. Clicking on one of the segment numbers will jump the video to that segment. To open the map in a full browser window, click on the name of the location.

Note:

Not all of the USC Shoah Foundation's geographic indexing terms have been assigned latitude and longitude coordinates for map display. Assigning coordinates to the terms will remain a work in progress. If you notice inaccurate coordinates, please email <u>whahelp@usc.edu</u>, and we will make corrections.

Experience Groups Search

The *Experience Groups Search* allows users to search basic biographical information for interviewees categorized within nine different experience groups.

Click *Experience Groups* on the main *Search* screen or select *Experience Groups Search* in the *Search* menu drop-down list to advance to the *Experience Groups Search* screen as pictured below.

USC Shoah Founda Visual Histor		Experience Groups Search
	To begin your search, select Global Search or o	ne of the experience groups and click next.
1	For those experience groups with fewer than 70 t	estimonies, you are taken directly to the Search Results screen.
	Global	Search (54,436)
)	European Holocaust, 1939-1945	Armenian Genocide, 1915-1923
	Jewish Survivor (51,333)	Armenian Survivor (270)
(Rescuer and Aid Provider (1, 158)	Miscellaneous (41)
(Liberator (429)	Descendant (23)
(Sinti and Roma Survivor (406)	Scholar (21)
(Political Prisoner (268)	Rescuer and Aid Provider (9)
(Miscellaneous (World War II) (155)	Foreign Witness (7)
	Jehovah's Witness Survivor (84)	Yezidi Survivor (6)
	War Crimes Trial Participant (62)	Genocide against the Tutsi in Rwanda, 1994
	Eugenic Policies Survivor (13)	Tutsi Survivor (67)
	Homosexual Survivor (6)	Rescuer (13)
		© Elder (4)
1	Nanjing Massacre, 1937	Hutu Power Opponent (1)
	Nanjing Massacre Survivor (30)	◎ Victim's Spouse (1)

GLOBAL SEARCH

Select *Global Search* or a specific experience group (by clicking the option button next to the specific group or the group name itself). For more information on the collections available in the **Visual History Archive**, see the **Collections** section on page 3.

The *Global Search* allows you to search on biographical information, such as name, place of birth, date of birth, interview location, and so on, common to all interviews as pictured at right.



The experience groups with more than 70 records have search criteria containing topics specific to each experience group. While the search criteria for each group may vary, the layout of the screen and the functionality for each experience group is consistent.

Note:

For experience groups with fewer than 70 records there is no search page. Selecting one of these groups takes you directly to the *Search Results* page.

EXPERIENCE GROUP EXAMPLE

As an example, click on the option button next to *Jewish Survivors* (under the *European Holocaust, 1939–1945* heading) which takes you directly to the *Jewish Survivors* search page as shown below.

USC Shoah Foundation Visual History Archive		Experience Groups Search Jewish Survivor
Search Results Testimonies: 51,333 Criteria:	than one criteria. If you click next after you select	kt screen to begin your search. Repeat this step for searching on more cted your search criteria, you will be taken to the search results screen. If earch results for the particular experience group will display.
	Biographical Information Name of Interviewee Gender of interviewee Date of Birth of Interviewee City of Birth of interviewee Country of Birth of interviewee Religious Affiliations of interviewee Interview Information State of interview Country of interview Language of interview Length of interview	Experiences Ghattos Concentration Camps Hiding, Flight, Resistance, Forced (death) Marches Location of Hiding or False Identity Type of Hiding Place Resistance Groups Liberated by Location of Liberation Aid Giver, Liberator, War Crimes Trials Participant Other Experiences
new search		back reset next

In addition to the *Biographical Information* and *Interview Information*, the page also displays categories of *Experiences* relevant to the *Jewish Survivors* experience group.

Select Categories of Experiences

You can build your search by selecting multiple criteria, one at a time. To select a specific experience category, click on the experience name, which takes you to a page displaying search options for a specific experience. As an example, let's build a search first by selecting *Ghettos*.

Ghettos

Once you are on the *Ghettos* search screen, you can use two different searches to find testimonies of *Jewish Survivors* who were incarcerated in specific ghettos.

Search by Name is the default search. You can enter the name of a ghetto, select the search type using the option buttons for *starts with*, *exact match*, or *contains*, and then click *Search*. The search type defaults to *starts with*, so if you enter just the first few characters of the name of a ghetto, such as *Brze*, your search yields ghettos with names like *Brzesko (Poland : Ghetto)* and *Brzezany (Poland : Ghetto)* as shown below.

Ghettos			
Search by Name	Search by Country	Selected Ghettos	
	ghetto and click sear e Selected Ghettos ta		tto or ghettos and click next . To view a list of the ghettos
brze	Sear	and the second se	
			t match
		cont	ains
5 Ghettos Found	d:		
🔲 (u)Brzeźnica (Rado	omsko, Lódz, Poland : O	ihetto)	
Brzesc nad Bugiem	n (Poland : Ghetto)		
Brzesko (Poland : 0	Ghetto)		
Brzezany (Poland :	Ghetto)		
🗌 Brzeziny (Lódz, Po	land : Ghetto)		

In most cases, it is best to select *starts with* or *contains* as your search type.

You can also browse a list of all ghettos within a specific country by clicking on the *Search by Country* tab, which at first displays a list of countries.

Many countries will show verified and unverified entries in the list, e.g., *ghettos in Greece: unverified* and *ghettos in Greece: verified*. Ghettos in the verified lists have been corroborated in Holocaust scholarship by the USC Shoah Foundation research team.

Note:

If you search for more than one ghetto, an OR search is performed, which means that returned results include all testimonies whose interviewees were incarcerated in any of the selected ghettos.

For this example, click on *ghettos in Poland: verified*, which displays a list of 507 verified ghettos in Poland as pictured below.

Ghettos	
Search by Name Search by Country Sele	ected Ghettos
Any term that could not be verified through resea	arch efforts is considered unverified and marked with an (u).
Any geographic term that could not be specifical due to the existence of duplicate names of geog	Ily located is marked as (generic). Generic terms are often labeled as such raphic terms within a specific region.
Select a ghetto or ghettos from below and click view a list of the ghettos selected, click on the S	next. If you select more than one ghetto, an OR search is performed. To
Country	 511 ghettos in Poland: verified
ghettos in Greece: verified	Aleksandria (Równe, Wolyn, Poland ; Ghetto)
ghettos in Hungary: unverified	Andrychów (Poland : Ghetto)
ghettos in Hungary: verified	Annopol (Poland : Ghetto)
ghettos in Latvia: verified	 Augustów (Bialystok, Poland : Ghetto)
ghettos in Lithuania: unverified	Baranow Sandomierski (Poland : Ghetto)
ghettos in Lithuania: verified	
ghettos in Poland: unverified	Baranowicze (Poland : Ghetto)
ghettos in Poland: verified	Bedzin (Poland : Ghetto)
ghettos in Romania: unverified	Belchatów (Poland : Ghetto)
ghettos in Romania: verified	Belzyce (Poland : Ghetto)
ghettos in the Netherlands: verified	🖾 Bereza Kartuska (Poland : Ghetto)
ghettos in the USSR: unverified	Berezne (Poland : Ghetto)
ghettos in the USSR: verified	Berezów (Poland : Ghetto)
	Biala Podlaska (Poland : Ghetto)
ghettos in Yugoslavia: verified	🚽 🗆 Biala Rawska (Poland : Ghetto)

To search for a specific ghetto, click on the checkbox next to the ghetto's name. To continue this example, click on *Bedzin (Poland: Ghetto)*. This adds the Bedzin ghetto to the *Selected Ghettos* tab as pictured below.

Ghettos		
Search by Name	Search by Country	Selected Ghettos
To search on the se or be taken to the s		next to go back to the main menu from where you can add other search criteria
Ghettos Selec	ted	
Bedzin (Poland :	Ghetto)	

Click *next* to continue the search, which takes you back to the *Jewish Survivor* search screen.

As pictured below, the *Ghetto* search criteria checkbox is checked and the *1 ghetto selected* comment is displayed. The *Search Results* on the left shows that there are 287 testimonies of *Jewish Survivors* who were confined in the Bedzin ghetto.

Search Results Testimonies: 298	Jewish Survivor					
Criteria: Ghettos	Selecting a criteria below will take you to the next screen to begin your search. Repeat this step for searching on more than one criteria. If you click next after you selected your search criteria, you will be taken to the search results screen. If you click next without choosing a category, all search results for the particular experience group will display					
	Biographical Information	Experiences				
	Name of Interviewee	Ghettos				
	Gender of interviewee	1 ghetto selected				
	Date of Birth of interviewee	Concentration Camps				
	City of Birth of interviewee	Hiding, Flight, Resistance, Forced (death) Marches				
	Country of Birth of interviewce	Location of Hiding or False Identity				
	Religious Affiliations of interviewee	Type of Hiding Place				
	Interview Information	Resistance Groups				
	State of interview	Liberated by				
	Country of interview	Location of Liberation				
	Language of interview	Aid Giver, Liberator, War Crimes Trials Participant				
	Length of interview	Other Experiences				

You can now select an additional category under *Biographical Information*, *Interview Information*, or *Experiences*, and build more criteria into your search. To continue this example, click *Hiding*, *Flight*, *Resistance*, *Force (death) Marches* which takes you to the detail page for that criteria.

Hiding, Flight, Resistance, Forced (death) Marches

On the *Hiding, Flight, Resistance, Forced (death) Marches* search screen pictured below, you have the option to search for testimonies of *Jewish Survivors* who *Went into hiding*, who were *Members of an underground, resistance, or partisan group*, who *Fled from Nazi-controlled territory*, or who were on *Forced (death) marches*.

Hiding, Flight, Resistance, Forced (death) Marches
If you would like to find testimonies that include any of the experiences below, select Yes on those that apply and click next. If you would like to find testimonies that do not include any of the experiences below, select No on those that apply and click next. If you select multiple criteria, an AND search is performed between the criteria.
1. Went into hiding: Yes V
2. Member of underground, resistance, or partisan groups:
3. Fled from Nazi-controlled territory:
4. Forced (death) marches:

Note:

You can choose more than one of these options if desired. A search with more than one of these options selected will perform an AND search between the options.

For this example, click on the down arrow next to the *Went into hiding* choice box, select *Yes*, and then click *next*. This takes you back once again to the main page for *Jewish Survivors*. As the main page shows, in addition to *Ghettos*, the *Hiding*, *Flight*, *Resistance*, *Force (death) Marches* criteria are checked.

CHOOSE AN AND OR OR SEARCH

By default, an *AND* search is performed between the two chosen criteria. As pictured below, the *Search Results* lists 96 testimonies that satisfy the search criteria (narrowed down from the previous 287 results).

USC Shoah Foundation		Experience Groups Search				
Visual Hi	story Archive	Jewish Survivor				
Search Results Testimonics: 99 Criteria: Chettos AND OR Hiding, Flight, Resistance, Forced (death) Marches	than one criteria. If you click next after you select	xt screen to begin your search. Repeat this step for searching on more cted your search criteria, you will be taken to the search results screen. If earch results for the particular experience group will display.				
	Blographical Information Name of interviewee Gender of interviewee City of Birth of interviewee City of Birth of interviewee Religious Affiliations of interviewee Interview Information State of Interview Country of interview Language of interview Length of interview	Experiences Gliettos 1 ghetto selected Concentration Camps Hiding, Flight, Resistance, Forced (death) Marches Location of Hiding or False Identity Type of Hiding Place Resistance Groups Liberatod by Location of Liberation Aid Giver, Liberator, War Crimes Trials Participant Other Experiences				
new search		back reset next				

When you select multiple categories of search criteria in an *Experience Groups Search*, you can specify an *AND* or *OR* search between criteria searches.

The *AND/OR* choice box is located on the left of the main page as shown above. To perform an *OR* search, simply click on the option button next to *OR*.

For our example, let's continue with the *AND* search. Thus, we will search for testimonies of *Jewish Survivors* who were incarcerated in the Bedzin ghetto and who went into hiding during their Holocaust experience.

Experience Groups Search Jewish Survivor - Search Results			
5 Results/Page			
O Find Interviewee			
Find Interviewee			
1.0			
lation			
lation			
ation			
lation			
lation			
lation			
lati			

Click *next* to advance to the *Search Results* page shown below.

For a full discussion of the results screen, see the **Search Results** section on page 8.

For a full discussion of viewing the results, see the **Viewing Screen** section on page 17.

SAVING RESULTS TO A PROJECT

Also, on the *Search Results* screen, you can choose to save the results of your search to a project. You can then return to the saved results at a later time.

To save the results from this example to a project, click the *Save to project* button.

For a full discussion of saving projects, see the **Saving Results to a Project** section on page 12.

Index Search

The *Index Search* allows users to search for segments of testimonies that discuss specific topics using about 45,000 geographic and experiential indexing terms.

Click *Index* on the main *Search* screen or select *Index Search* in the *Search* menu drop-down list to advance to the *Index Search* screen pictured below.

5	About Us	Search	Search History	Proj	ects	Terms Of Use	Help	Contact
								VHA Demo Logout
USC Shoah Found Visual Hi	dation istory Archive						In	dex Search
Filter	To find releva	ant indexing te	erms, type a word(s) in t	he Find	Term te	xt box. To browse ind	exina terms	. click on 💮 next to a
Collection	subject in bo	old red; e.g. c	ulture, in the Indexing synonyms for Indexing	Terms (hoices	After selecting your		
			Find Terr	_			Index	ing Term & Definition:
Language	Indexing Ter	m Choices:	1 III ICIII	0	resista	nce (used in 1,124 te		<u>م</u>
	resista			-	► Syn		1	
Gender ALL Y		vert weapons p	rocurement		Acts ca	arried out by civilians	intended to	contravene the
		rtisan family can				of, or undermine the		
Experience Group		istance activiti				ing powers and/or pov		tting genocide
ALL		fe houses			and/or	crimes against human	iity.	
Projects	sel	If-preservation a	cts					
SELECT ONE	1.000			10			Folor	ted Indexing Termes ()
Search Results Testimonies: 0 Segments: 0	reveng economics feelings an forced lab governmen health liberation mistreatme movement organizatio poople politics post-libera	Ilberation moteratment and death movement organizations people			Selected Indexing Terms:			
New Search		DBUBDCBS				Back	Rese	t Next

The *Index Search* screen as shown above offers several important features, described in the following sections, which help users select one or more indexing terms to use to search for specific segments of testimony.

BROWSING INDEXING TERMS

The *Indexing Term Choices* tree presents a complete list of available indexing terms that are categorized under several broad topics.
To browse for indexing terms of interest, click on the plus sign next to a topic shown in bold red, and the tree expands to show all terms related to that topic.

As pictured at right, clicking on the topic *discrimination responses* reveals numerous indexing terms, such as *aid giving, collaboration, resistance*, and so on.

Clicking on the plus sign next to bold red terms indented under *discrimination responses* will reveal yet another layer of indexing terms. In this example, *resistance* has been opened to reveal more terms underneath. Some terms in the hieararchy may contain several sub-layers of additional indexing terms under them.

INDEXING TERM & DEFINITION

The *Indexing Term & Definition* box located in the upper right side of the screen displays the selected indexing term along with a brief definition or description of the term as shown at right.

The number of testimonies in which the term was indexed is also displayed. This number will help you estimate how many results to



Indexing Term & Definition: resistance (used in 1,124 testimonies) Synonyms Acts carried out by civilians intended to contravene the policies of, or undermine the authority or stability of occupying powers and/or powers committing genocide and/or crimes against humanity.

expect before performing the actual search. If an indexing term has been indexed in a large number of testimonies, you may want to narrow your search by combining multiple terms using an *AND* search.

In addition, the date when the index term was first created and added to the Shoah Foundation index term thesaurus is included after the definition. Newly created terms have been selectively, not comprehensively, applied to already indexed testimonies.

In this example, clicking on the *resistance* indexing term within the *Indexing Term Choices* tree, the *Indexing Term & Definition* window displays its definition and the number of testimonies in which that indexing term was indexed (1047 testimonies in this example).

SEARCHING FOR INDEXING TERMS

Instead of browsing for indexing terms of interest, you can search for relevant indexing terms using the *Find Term* text box located above the *Indexing Term Choices* tree. This feature is especially useful in helping you find relevant indexing terms whose specific names and spellings you do not know.

To search for relevant indexing terms, type a word or topic of interest in the *Find Term* text box. Upon typing in some text, a predictive search results window opens displaying suggested indexing terms in the thesaurus that are relevant to the entered text as pictured below.

USC Sho	oah Found Visual Hi	dation istory Archive		Index Search
Filter Transcript Avai Collection ALL	lable		Ire, in the Indexing Terms	nd Term text box. To browse indexing terms, click on 💮 next to s Choices. After selecting your indexing term(s), click next to s appear in green.
Language	18 Indexing Term	music	Find Term	Indexing Term & Definition camp cultural activities (used in 1,834 testimonies)
Gender ALL Experience Group ALL Projects	performing arts musical recitals arts related forced performing arts (s interviewee origin	stills)	4	camp musical activities (narrower term) Voluntary activities concerned with art, music, intellectual pursuits, entertainment, sports and lefsure pursued in the camps or by camp inmates outside the camps (excluding refugee camps).
SELECT ONE Search Results Testimonies: 0	family member or famous musician ghetto orchestras camp cultural act	is and composers		Selected Indexing Terms:
Segments. O	ghetto cultural ac hiding-related cult prison cultural act camp orchestras deportation cultur transfer cultural a refugee camp cul resistance group forced labor batta	tural activities tivities al activities uctivities tural activities		Add Karnove ≪ Search Type: AND ◎ OR Search Options: Narrow ▼

The suggested indexing terms are presented because the indexing term label or the indexing term synonyms contained the typed text. The suggestions are ranked according to best match.

In the example shown above, upon typing the word *music* in the *Find Term* text box, the predictive search results window displays all of the indexing terms in the thesaurus that are relevant. In this case, there are 18 indexing terms that match the text *music*.

Note:

If you do not select an indexing term in the *Find Term* predictive search results window, the window stays open until you click somewhere else on the page.

In addition to viewing the list of indexing terms you can also place the mouse cursor over a term and its definition and the number of testimonies in which it was indexed gets displayed in the *Indexing Term & Definition* box. In the example above, the pointer was moved over the indexing term *ghetto cultural activities*; thus, it's definition is displayed in the *Indexing Term & Definition* box.

In the Indexing Term & Definition box, you can also see that the narrower term (a type of synonym), *ghetto musical activities*, appearing in green, matched the text *music* entered in the *Find Term* text box. This is the reason that the indexing term *ghetto cultural activities* appears in the suggestions list.

Clicking on the caret symbol next to the green synonym in the *Indexing Term & Definition* box will show additional synonyms assigned to the indexing term as pictured at right.



Indexing terms in the **VHA** may have 5 types of synonyms that appear in green: synonym, near

synonym, narrower term, broader term, and related term. Each of these is described briefly below.

• Synonym: (synonym) indicates a synonym that is equivalent in meaning to the indexing term but is not the preferred term. The indexing term is the preferred term.

Example: *property seizure* (indexing term), *confiscation of property* (synonym)

• Near synonym: (near synonym) indicates a synonym that has a similar meaning to the indexing term.

Example: *arrests* (indexing term), *detentions* (near synonym)

• Narrower term: (narrower term) indicates a synonym that has a whole/part relationship to the indexing term.

Example: *performing arts* (indexing term), *music* (narrower term)

• Broader term: (broader term) indicates a synonym that has a broader (but still similar) meaning than the indexing term.

Example: *food* (indexing term), *food and drink* (broader term)

• Related term: (related term) indicates a synonym that has an association with the indexing term but whose meaning is significantly distinct.

Example: *aid giving* (indexing term), *courage* (related term)

In general, synonyms enhance users' ability to find relevant indexing terms.

If you decide to select one of the suggested indexing terms and continue your search, click on it to proceed (the window with suggestions will close automatically). Once again, the definition of the indexing term you click gets displayed in the *Indexing Terms & Definition* box and the *Indexing Term Choices* tree opens and highlights that indexing term.

SELECTING INDEXING TERMS

Once you have located an indexing term, either by browsing or searching, and it is highlighted in the *Indexing Term Choices* tree, you must then add the term to the *Selected Indexing Terms* box. The indexing terms that you add to the *Selected Indexing Terms* box become your search terms.

To add an indexing term to the *Selected Indexing Terms* box, highlight the indexing term in the *Indexing Terms Choices* tree, and then click *Add*. As an example, add the indexing terms *deportation thirst* and *deportation from Mátészalka (Hungary : Ghetto)* to the *Selected Indexing Terms* box as pictured below.



SPECIFYING THE SEARCH TYPE AND SEGMENT RANGE

When you add terms to the *Selected Indexing Terms* box, the *Search Type* defaults to an *AND* search. An *OR* search will generally yield many more results.

To change the *Search Type*, click the option button next to *OR* or *AND*, which appears near the

bottom center of the *Indexing Terms Search* screen as pictured at right. To continue our example, keep the default *AND* as the *Search Type* to search for testimonies with both the indexing terms *deportation thirst AND deportation from Mátészalka (Hungary : Ghetto)*.

The *AND* search also permits you to choose *Search Options*. The Search Options defaults to *Narrow*, but you can change it to *Broad* if desired. The *Narrow* option essentially searches for the selected terms within the same segment and will yield fewer results. The *Broad* option searches for the selected terms anywhere within the same testimony.



To continue our example, using the default Search Type and Search Options, click *next* to conduct the search. The search yields 2 segment results in 2 testimonies, which can be seen under the *Search Results* heading in the left column.

SEARCH RESULTS

The *Search Results* page as shown below will display segments in which one of your *Selected Indexing Terms* appeared first. Multiple segment results may be listed for the same interviewee depending on the position of the indexing term combinations in the segments. For example, two segment results are listed for *Judith Altmann* below.

Filter		
Transcript Available	1-2 × / / of 2	Sort by Relevance v 5 v Results/Page
Collection		© Find Interviewee
ALL T	Name: Judith Altmann	Video Available
Language	Experience: Jewish Survivor	Language: English
ALL •	Experience. Jewish Survivor	Collection, USC Shoah Foundation
Gender	Segment#: 12	Collection: USC Shoan i Guildation
ALL 🔻	76.85.8	
Experience Group	Name: Vera Slyomovics	Video Available
ALL	Experience: Jewish Survivor	Language: English
Projects		Collection: USC Shoah Foundation
SELECT ONE	► Segment#: 35	
Search Results		
Testimonies: 2		
Segments: 2		
All Indexing Terms		
Fuzzy Search		
Selected Indexing Terms:		
deportation thirst		
deportation from Mátészalka		
(Hungary : Chetto)		

For a full discussion of the results screen, see the Search Results section on page 8.

People Search

The **Visual History Archive** contains a database of about 1.8 million names that can be searched. In addition to the names of interviewees, including maiden names, false names, and other alternative names of interviewees, the names of people mentioned in the interviews or recorded in the preinterview questionnaires, such as family members, acquaintances, camp prisoners, etc., are searchable.

Click *People* on the main *Search* screen or select *People Search* in the *Search* menu drop-down list to advance to the *People Search* screen shown below.

USC Shoah Four Visual	ndation People Search History Archive
Filter Transcript Available Collection ALL T	The PEOPLE SEARCH enables you to search by first and/or last name of interviewees, including maiden names, nicknames, and any other aliases, if given. People Search also searches on names of other people who were provided by the interviewee during the interview process.
Search Results People: 0 Testimonies: 0	First Name: Last Name: Search Search Search Male First Name: Astronomic Search Search Male First Name First Name: Search Search Male First Name First Name Search S
Selected People: 0 Testimonies: 0	Scarch Results Selected People Relationship Interviewee
New Search	Back Reset Next

Enter the name you want to search for in the *First Name* and *Last Name* text boxes. You can search for a first name only and leave the last name blank, or vice versa.

Select the desired search type using the option buttons for *starts with*, *exact match*, or *contains*. The search type defaults to *starts with*, so if you enter just the first few characters of a name, such as "Got," your search will yield names like "Gotfryd" or "Gottfried." In most cases, it is best to select *starts with* or *contains* as your search type.

starts with
 exact match
 contains

In addition, you can use the *Male*, *Female* or *Interviewee Only* filters to refine your search. By default, the *Interviewee Only* option is unchecked.

Interview	vee Only
🗹 Male	Female

PHONETIC MATCHING

To aid in finding names of people that may be pronounced similarly but spelled in multiple ways including with diacritics, users have the option to perform a phonetic matching search on text typed in the names fields.

To conduct a *People Search* using *Phonetic Matching*, check the *Phonetic Matching* check box and type in a name. As pictured below, after typing in *Sztein* in the *Last Name* text box with *Phonetic Matching* selected, a scrollable popup suggestion list appears that presents relevant alternative last names like *Sztajn*, *Shtayn*, etc.



A user can click on any of the alternative names presented and then search on that spelling.

The **VHA** implements the Beider-Morse Phonetic Matching (BMPM) system developed by Alexander Beider and Stephen P. Morse. The main objective of BMPM consists in recognizing that two words written in a different way actually can be phonetically equivalent, that is, they both can sound alike. But unlike soundex methods, the "sounds-alike" test is based not only on the spelling, but on linguistic properties of various languages. For additional information about Beider-Morse Phonetic Matching, please read more at <u>http://stevemorse.org/phonetics/bmpm.htm</u>.

PEOPLE SEARCH EXAMPLE

As an example of a *People Search*, in the *Last Name* text box enter *Goldman*. The search type defaults to *starts with*. Click *Search* to begin the search.

The initial search brings back 1,860 results and displays them in the *Search Results* table as pictured below. Out of the 1,860 results with a last name that starts with *Goldman*, some are interviewees and some are other people that have been mentioned in the 646 testimonies.

USC Shoah Fou	ndation		People	Search
Visual	History Archive			
ilter	C			
Transcript Available	The PEOPLE SEARCH enables you to search nicknames, and any other aliases, if given. Peo			
ALL •	the interviewee during the interview process.			
Search Results People: 1,860	First Name: Last Name:	tic Matching	starts with Interviewe	
Testimonies: 646	goldman	Search	exact match Male	🗹 Female
Selected People: 0	Search Results Selected People		K << 1 - 100	v > >>>
Testimonies: 0	Name Found	Relationship	Interviewee	
	[Goldman] (name at birth for Emil Goldman)	fathers	Harry Goldman	
	[Goldman] (maiden name for Mary)	sisters, biological	Louis Goldman	
	Goldman] (maiden name for Rachel Goldman Miller)	⁻ Interviewee	Rachel Goldman-Miller	
	[Goldman] (maiden name for Rosa)	sisters, biological	Louis Goldman	
	[Goldman] (name at birth for Zelda Dorfsman)	mothers, biological	lda Neymiller	
	[Goldman]*	uncles, maternal	Berthe Prasquer	
	Goldman (release maiden name for 'elah Mishpati)	Interviewee	elah Mishpati	
	Goldman (name at birth for 'ester Malkah Tsipershtein)	mothers, biological Me'ir Tsipershtein		
	Goldman (release maiden name for 'ester Vaysfayler)	Interviewee	ʻester Vaysfayler	
	Goldman (name at birth for 'ester Vaysfayler)	wives	'alfred Vaysfayler	
	_ Goldman (last name during war for Aaron			
New Search			Back Reset	Next

The *Relationship* listed after each name indicates the relationship of that person to the interviewee in a particular testimony. When available, alternative names have been entered for people in the **Visual History Archive's** database, such as maiden names, nicknames, false names, etc. A *People Search* searches all alternative names for matches, and displays the name matching the search criteria.

The *Search Results* table displays 100 results per page and you can use the scrollbar located on the right to navigate through all of the results on that page. The *Paging* feature allows you to go directly to a chosen set of 100 results. The results can also be sorted by clicking on any of the results table headers – *Name Found, Relationship* or *Interviewee*.

In order to narrow the search results further, type the name *Sam* in the *First Name* text box and click *Search*. As pictured below, the query returns 13 names from 11 testimonies.

Filter	(
Transcript Available	The PEOPLE SEAR	CH enables you to sear	ch by first and/or	last nam	te of interviewces, in	cluding maid	en names,	
Collection	 nicknames, and any other aliases, if given. People Search also searches on names of other people who were p the interviewee during the interview process. 					were provided b		
ALL								
	Enter the Name and	click Search.	netic Matching					
Search Results	First Name:	Last Name:			starts with	Intervie	Interviewee Only	
People. 13 Testimonies: 11	sam	goldman	Se	earch	exact match	Male Male	Female	
resumonies. II					contains			
Selected People: 0	Search Results	Selected People				K << 1 - 13 • > >>		
Testimonies: 0	Name Found	Name Found		Relationship				
	📄 Sam [Goldman]	📄 Sam [Goldman]		ildren	Anita Steinache	r		
	📃 Sam Goldman	📄 Sam Goldman			Sam Goldman			
	Goldman (rel Goldman)	Bam Goldman (release name for Sam Goldman)			Sam Goldman			
	📄 Sam Goldman	Sam Goldman		brothers				
	Sam Goldman	Sam Goldman		sons				
	📄 Sam Goldman (cu	Sam Goldman (current name for Sam Gold		man)sons cousins, paternal				
	Sam Goldman					1		
	Sam Coldman (other name for Solomon Goldman)		Interviewee		Solomon Goldm	an		
	Samuel Goldman		fathers, biologi	ical	Anna Neuman-O	Goldman		
	📄 Samuel Goldman		brothers, biolo	gical	Joseph Goldma	n		
	📄 Samuel Goldman		uncles, paterna	uncles, paternal		ak		
	Samuel Goldmann	n	grandfathers, p	paternal	Andres Gordan			
	Samuel* Goldman		uncles, matern	nal	Adam Herzia			

PEOPLE/RELATIONSHIP POPUP WINDOW

Placing the mouse cursor over a name in the *Search Results* table displays the *People/Relationship Popup Window* as shown below. This window contains a list of people in a specific testimony and displays their names and relationship to the interviewee. The name matching the search criteria is bolded and highlighted in red. Here, the fourth result *Sam Goldman* is a brother of interviewee *Miryam Wise*.

Filter Transcript Available Collection ALL	The PEOPLE SEARCI nicknames, and any ot the interviewee during Enter the Name and cli	her aliases, if given. F the interview process.	Int Code: 5655 Alias: Goldman - maiden nar		2
Search Results	First Name	Last Name	no Goldman - release maiden name Mlmi - nickname		
People. 13	sam	goldman	Mimi - nickname Mimi Mai - false name		
Testimonies: 11		Name Found E Beigle aid g Sam (Goldman) Yolande Blaque aid g Sabina aunt		thers	
Selected People: 0	Search Results Se			Relationship	
Testimonies: 0	Name Found			ald givers	*
	Sam [Goldman]			aid givers	
	Sam Goldman			aunts	
	Sam Coldman (release name for Sam Goldman)		Esther Sam Goldman Mandel Szweibaum	aunts, paternal brothers cousins	
	Sam Goldman	Henri Szweibaum	cousins		
	Sam Goldman	Sam Goldman Sam Goldman (current name for Sam Goldr Sam Goldman Sam Goldman (other name for Solomon		daughters	
				daughters	
				daughters-in-law	
				extended family members	
				fathers	
	Goldman)		Michael Kaplin Jonathon Kaplan	grandsons grandsons	

You can also select a subset of the results by clicking the checkbox next to individual names. In this example, select the results which are names of people other than interviewees. In order to see the selected results by themselves click the *Selected People* tab. As shown below, the *Selected People* table displays the 9 selected results.

First Name:	Last Name:		starts with	Interviewee Only
sam	goldman	Search	 exact match contains 	Male Female
Search Results	Selected People			K << 1 - 13 v > »
📕 Name Found 🖪		Relationship	Interviewee	
📄 Sam Goldman		Interviewee	Sam Goldman	
Goldman (Goldman)	release name for Sam	Interviewee	Sam Goldman	
🕢 Sam Goldman		brothers	Miryam Wise	
🖉 Sam Goldman		sons	Lola Goldman	
Sam Goldman (Goldman)	(current name for Sam	sons	Lola Goldman	
🕢 Sam Goldman		cousins, paternal	Walter Saltzberg	g
Sam Goldman (Goldman)	other name for Solomon	Interviewee	Solomon Goldma	an
Samuel Goldma	an	fathers, biological	Anna Neuman-G	Goldman
Samuel Goldma	an	brothers, biological	Joseph Goldma	n
Samuel Goldma	an	uncles, paternal	Barbara Walusia	ak
Samuel Goldma	ann	grandfathers, paternal	Andres Gordan	
Samuel* Goldm	ian	uncles, maternal	Adam Herzig	

In order to view these results on the **Search Results** page, click *Next*. The *Search Results* page displays the 9 testimonies that were selected in the earlier search. As pictured below, the matching names are listed under the interviewee information.



For a full discussion of the results screen, see the Search Results section on page 8.

Places Search

Click *Places* on the main *Search* screen or select *Places Search* in the *Search* menu drop-down list to advance to the *Places Search* screen shown below.



The *Places Search* provides three different ways to look for segments of testimonies related to specific geographic locations: 1) browsing the geographic indexing terms list arranged by continents or by location types, 2) enter a location to search, and 3) zoom and move the focus of the map.

Note:

The geographic indexing terms in Europe reflect the historical boundaries of the interwar period prior to the beginning to World War II or prior to Nazi occupation whichever was earliest. The rest of the world reflects contemporary geography.

BROWSING GEOGRAPHIC INDEXING TERMS

In the left-hand column of the *Places Search* page, as pictured at right, you can browse the USC Shoah Foundation's thesaurus of geographic indexing terms via a hierarchical tree organized by *Locations* or by *Types*. The *Places Search* defaults to the *Locations* tree.

Browsing by Locations

The *Locations* option enables users to browse geographic indexing terms by continent, country, administrative unit, and specific place.

To browse for *Locations* of interest, click on the plus sign next to a continent, and the tree expands to show the countries and other geographic features in that continent. You can continue to drill down through countries, and administrative units, to specific places.

Clicking on the plus sign next to any locations in the hierarchical tree will reveal additional layers of geographic indexing terms underneath.

Browsing by Types

To browse by location *Types*, select the *Types* radio button to display the *Types* hierarchy. Clicking on the plus sign next to any location *Types* will reveal additional layers of location *Types* and geographic indexing terms underneath.

As pictured at right, several levels of *Types* were clicked through, *detention complexes>>concentration camps>>Bulgarian concentration camps>>Bulgarian concentration camps in Bulgaria>>Bulgarian concentration camps in Bulgaria, verified*, to get to the indexing term *Somovit (Bulgaria : Concentration Camp)*.

To reset the *Browse Locations* or *Types* tree, simply click on the circular arrows located at the top right of the tree. This will collapse all expanded layers and reset the tree to its initial state.





MAP DISPLAY OF GEOGRAPHIC INDEXING TERMS

When you click on a geographic indexing term that has been assigned longitude and latitude coordinates while browsing the *Locations* or *Types* tree, the map will automatically move and focus on that location. In the example pictured below, the indexed location *Kamenets-Podol'skii (Kamenets-Podol'skii, Ukraine, USSR : Ghetto)* is selected.



In addition to shifting the focus area of the map, an information window for the clicked location displays a historical description and the number of testimonies in the archive in which the location was indexed. As shown above, the Kamenets-Podol'skii ghetto was *used in 14 testimonies*.

Note:

When you click on a location or type in the tree that has more geographic indexing terms inherited underneath (referred to as descendants), the map will display all of the descendent locations.

FOUND LOCATIONS

Below the map, a list of the indexed locations appearing in the focus area of the map are displayed in the *Found* box. The geographic indexing term term that was clicked in the *Locations* tree, is highlighted in yellow as pictured at right. In this instance, the *Found* box shows *15 Indexing Terms* used in *144 Testimonies* in the map area displayed around the Kamenets-Podol'skii ghetto.

Found: 15 Indexing Terms, 144 Testimonies 🔅		
Kamenets-Podolskii (Kamenets-Podol'skii, Ukraine, USSR : Concentration Camp)	8	1
Kamenets-Podol'skii (Kamenets-Podol'skii, Ukraine, USSR : Ghetto)	14	
Kamenets-Podol'skii (Kamenets-Podol'skii, Ukraine, USSR)	119	•

SELECTED LOCATIONS

To see the testimonies in which one or more locations have been indexed, you must first add the geographic indexing terms for the locations to the *Selected* box below the map. You can add a location's indexing term by either clicking on the *Select Location* button in the location's information window overlaid on the map or double-clicking the geographic indexing term in the *Found* box.

If you add more than one indexed location as pictured at right, the *Selected* box shows the number of indexed locations selected as well as the total number of testimonies in which any of the locations were indexed. This is equivalent to performing an OR search on the selected locations. In this example, a total of *20 Testimonies* contain the indexed locations *Kamenets-Podol'skii (Kamenets-Podol'skii, Ukraine, USSR : Ghetto)* or *Kamenets-Podol'skii (Kamenets-Podol'skii, Ukraine, USSR : Concentration Camp).*



If you want to remove a geographic indexing term from the *Selected* box, simply click on the term you want to remove and then click the *Remove from list* button.

Once you have added the *Selected* locations, click *Next* to advance to the *Search Results* page.

For a full discussion of the results screen, see the Search Results section on page 8.

For a full discussion of viewing the results, see the Viewing Screen section on page 17.

Note:

Often camps and ghettos have exactly the same geographic coordinates assigned as the cities in which they are located. In these cases, multiple red icons will show up in the exact same spot even under maximum zoom. The only way to determine this is by looking in the *Found* box for the locations names.

Aggregate Display of Locations

If the focus area of the map contains too many indexed locations to display individually, the locations will be aggregated and the number of locations displayed in yellow circles. As an example, clicking on *Bialystok (Poland : Voivodship)* in the *Browse Locations* tree results in the map display pictured below.



As indicated in the *Found* box, *240 Indexing Terms* for locations in the Bialystok voivodship were found. To see the individual locations, continue to zoom and focus the map on an area and red icons for specific locations will emerge.

Note:

Not all USC Shoah Foundation geographic indexing terms have been assigned latitude and longitude coordinates for map display. Assigning coordinates will remain a work in progress. Currently, most cities, towns, ghettos, and camps have indexing terms with geographic coordinates. If you notice inaccurate coordinates, please email <u>vhahelp@usc.edu</u> to let us know.

FIXED LOCATIONS FILTER

Whenever you click on a geographic indexing term in the *Browse Locations* or *Types* tree that has a plus sign beside it, the *Fixed Locations* filter will be displayed above the map and the location checked as pictured at right after clicking on

Bialystok (Poland : Voivodship).

Fixed Locations: 🛛 🗹 Bialystok (Poland : Voivodship) 🗍 🔅

When this filter is active and the location checked, only the descendant locations (i.e., locations included under the broader checked location—in this case, locations within the Bialystok voivodship) will be displayed on the map. No other icons of indexed locations in the focus area of the map will be displayed, except those associated with the filter location.

For instance, if you drag and move the focus of the map away from Bialystok voivodship to Germany, no icons of indexed locations in Germany can be seen. To see additional indexed locations on the map, you must uncheck the filter location or click on a different location in the *Browse Locations* or *Types* tree.

SEARCHING FOR INDEXED LOCATIONS

Instead of browsing the list of indexed *Locations* or *Types*, you can enter a location in the *Search* input box positioned above the map. As you type in a location, a predictive search results window opens displaying suggested geographic indexing terms that are relevant to the entered text.

Africa	ocations Types	
 Asia Atlantic Od Caspian S Europe North and Oceania Ottoman E Pacific Oc Red Sea 	Asia 19 Indexing Term(s) found 2 Atiantic Oc Searching Caspian Sk Riga (Latvia) Europe Riga (Latvia : Concentration Camp)(generic) North and Riga (Latvia : Concentration Camp) Otoman E Pacific Oce UDits and (Latvia : Concentration Camp) Jungfernhof (Latvia : Concentration Camp) Ungfernhof (Latvia : Concentration Camp) Ungfernhof (Latvia : Concentration Camp)	 Search Enter a location to show indexed locations on the map. Riga (Latvia) (used in 309 testimonies) Synonyms Coordinates: 56°5/N 24°0/TE E of Liopaja Ca. 1930 Province: Vidzame 1900-1917: Russia 1918-1920: Tenritory disputed between Latvia, Germany, Soviet Russia, and White Russians' 1920-1940. Latvia 1940-1941: Annexed to the USSR (Latvian Soviet Socialist Republic) 1941-1944: Occupied by Germany (Reichskommissariat Ostland) 1945-1991: USSR (Latvian Soviet Socialist Republic) 1991 Latvia
	Riga-Lenta (Latvia : Concentration Camp) Riga-Mühlgraben (Latvia : Concentration Camp) Riga-Reichsbahn (Latvia : Concentration Camp) Riga-Spilwe (Latvia : Concentration Camp) Riga-Strasdenhof (Latvia : Concentration Camp) Dondangen I (Latvia : Concentration Camp) Wilna HKP (Poland : Concentration Camp) Jūrmala (Latvia)	History: This term was introduced on Sep 26, 1996. Dobris South Allantic Ocean Argentina Medagescar Medagescar Medagescar Medagescar Medagescar Medagescar Medagescar Ocean + - - - - - - - - - - - - -

In the example pictured above, upon typing the word *riga* in the *Search* input box, the predictive search results window presents all of the geographic indexing terms in the indexing term thesaurus that are relevant. In this case, there are 19 indexed locations that match the text *riga*.

The suggested geographic indexing terms are presented because the term labels or synonyms contained the typed text. The suggestions are ranked according to best match.

Hovering the mouse pointer over one of the suggested locations will display an information window for the location containing a historical description and the number of testimonies in the archive in which the location was indexed. As you can see on the previous page, the pointer was hovered over *Riga (Latvia)*.

Once you click on one of the locations listed in the suggested locations, the map will move and focus on that location, and an information window for the location will be displayed. In the example pictured below, the suggested geographic indexing term *Riga (Latvia : Ghetto)* was clicked.



Again, you can then add the location's indexing term to the *Selected* box by either clicking on the *Select Location* button in the location's information window overlaid on the map or double-clicking the geographic indexing term in the *Found* box. as explained in the *Selected Locations* section above on page 48.

Once you have added the *Selected* locations, click *Next* to advance to the *Search Results* page to see a list of the relevant testimonies.

For a full discussion of the results screen, see the **Search Results** section on page 8.

ZOOMING AND MOVING THE MAP

Instead of browsing or searching for indexed locations, you can zoom in and move the map to reveal indexed locations in the focus area. As you zoom in, the indexed locations in the vicinity of the focus area will be listed in the *Found* box below the map. In the example pictured below, the map has been zoomed in and focused on the area around *Wysokie Mazowieckie* in Poland.



To see information about an indexed location, click on a location's icon, and an information window will display a description of the location and the number of testimonies in which the location was indexed.

Again, if the focus area of the map contains too many indexed locations to display individually, the locations will be aggregated and the number of locations displayed in yellow circles. To see the individual locations, continue to zoom and focus the map on an area and red icons for specific locations will emerge.

To see the testimonies in which one or more locations have been indexed, you must first add the geographic indexing terms for the locations to the *Selected* box below the map and click *next* as described in the previous section.

Integrating Searches Using Projects

The **Projects** feature of the **VHA** offers users the capability to search within testimony or segment results that have been saved from previous searches and share these search results with other users. For instance, you could save the results of a **Quick Search** to a project and then search for a subset of those results in which a specific indexing term was indexed using an **Indexing Terms Search**. This is very helpful when you identify a large set of testimonies on a possible subject, but you are only interested in a particular subset.

For a complete discussion of **Saving Results to a Project**, see page 12.

To perform a search within the results of a saved project, click on *Search* in the top menu to go to the main *Search* page where you can select a search type, or select a search type in the *Search* menu drop-down list. Once you are on the main page of a selected search, use the *Projects Filter* located on the left to find a specific project.

For a complete discussion of **Filtering Search Results**, see page 11.

As an example, let's search within the project we saved in the **Quick Search Example** section on page 7. The project, *Bedzin, ghetto, hunger*, contains 70 testimonies, of survivors who were both incarcerated in the Bedzin ghetto and went into hiding during the war. We could then find the segments within those testimonies in which the indexing term *camp Jewish religious observances* was indexed by doing an *Indexing Terms Search*.

To do this, select *Indexing Terms Search* on the main *Search* screen and then click on the *Projects Filter*. Once the projects types are displayed, click on *My Projects*, which activates a drop down list

with names of the projects you created as pictured at right. The list is ordered alphabetically, so scroll down and click on the project named *Bedzin*, *ghetto*, *hunger* and then click *OK*.

To continue this example, search for the indexing term *ghetto Jewish religious observances* following the process outlined

Projects SELECT ONE		discrimination discrimination responses	
SELECTIONE	¥		
My Projects	Bedzin	, ghetto, hunger 🔽 🔹	
Sookmarked Projects	Bedzin, ghetto, hunger Born in Portugal		
Shared Projects		sienstadt ghetto - child survivors	
ОК	Clear	Cancel	

in the Browsing Indexing Terms or Searching Indexing Terms sections beginning on page 34.

Once you add the *ghetto Jewish religious observances* term to the *Selected Indexing Terms* box, the *Search Results* shows that 9 segments match the search criteria. Click *Next* to advance to the *Search Results* page as shown below.



When filtering an *Indexing Terms Search* by a previously-saved *Project* that contains segment results (e.g., saved results from a previous Indexing Terms Search), the VHA treats the project segment results as testimony results. In other words, the VHA will search for the selected indexing term in any of the segments of the testimonies whose segments were saved in the project. This is more helpful than only getting results back if the indexing terms on which you search appear in one of the segments already saved in the project.

Once you are on the *Search Results* page, you can view the segments which are the results of your search. You can click on the caret symbol next to *Segment* to view the matching indexing term.

To save the results from this example to a project, click the save to project button.

For more details on the results screen, see the Search Results section on page 8.

For more details on viewing the results, see the Viewing Screen section on page 16.

For more details on saving projects, see the **Saving Results to a Project** section on page 12.

Research Examples

Presented below are examples of search strategies used to locate relevant testimonies for specific research questions. Examples 2 – 4 illustrate more advanced search strategies.

Example 1: "How many rescuers were interviewed in Ukraine?"

Click *Experience Groups* on the main *Search* screen pictured below or select *Experience Groups Search* in the *Search* menu drop-down list pictured at right to advance to the *Experience Groups Search* screen to begin this example.

Search Search History Quick Search Experience Groups Search Index Search People Search Places Search



On the Experience Groups Search screen Select Rescuers and Aid Providers.

Global Search (54,436)		
European Holocaust, 1939-1945	Armenian Genocide, 1915-1923	
Jewish Survivor (51,333)	Armenian Survivor (270)	
Rescuer and Aid Provider (1,158)	Miscellaneous (41)	
Cliberator (429)	Descendant (23)	

On the *Rescuers and Aid Providers* screen, select *Country of interview*.

Interview Information
State of interview
Country of interview
Language of interview
Length of interview

Then choose *Ukraine*.

Country of Interview				
To search on a country, select the country below performed.	and click next . If you sele	ect more than o	one country, an OF	R search is
Country Choices: 29				
Cermany				*
Greece				
Hungary				
🖾 Israel				
Italy				
🔲 Latvia				
Lithuania				
Moldova				_
Netherlands				_
Poland				_
Portugal				_
Russia				_
Slovakia				
South Africa				_
Sweden				_
U.S.A.				_
🗹 Ukraine				
United Kingdom				
🔲 Yugoslavia				
		back	reset	next

The *Search Results* count then shows that 412 testimonies were conducted in *Ukraine* with *Rescuers and Aid Providers*.

To see the list of these testimonies, click *next* to advance to the *Search Results* page.



Example 2: "How many Polish-born Jewish survivors were interviewed in France?"

Click *Experience Groups* on the main *Search* screen or select *Experience Groups Search* in the *Search* menu drop-down list to advance to the *Experience Groups Search* screen to begin this example.

On the *Experience Groups Search* screen select *Jewish Survivors*.

Global Search (54,436)				
European Holocaust, 1939-1945	Armenian Genocide, 1915-1923			
Jewish Survivor (51,333)	Armenian Survivor (270)			
Rescuer and Aid Provider (1, 158)	Miscellaneous (41)			
Liberator (429)	Descendant (23)			

Because Poland only came into existence as an independent country in November 1918, if you select *Country of Birth* and *Poland*, you will neglect all the people born in cities such as Warsaw and Kraków before that time.

The trick to making this work is to first select instead *City of Birth*. Then enter the word *Poland* in the *Search by Name* text box, choose the search option *contains*, and click *Search*. Select all the cities results that are returned. The *Search Results* count displayed on the left shows that 15,635 interviewees were born in *Poland*.

Biographical Information
Name of interviewee
Gender of interviewee
Date of Birth of interviewee
City of Birth of interviewee
Country of Birth of interviewee
Religious Affiliations of interviewe

Search Results Testimonics: 15,635	City of Birth
Selected Cities: 1,601	Search by Name Search by Country Selected Cities
	Enter the City Name below and click search; then select a city or cities and click next. To view a list of the cities selected, click on the Selected Cities tab above.
	Poland Search Search start with
	contains
	4 1,601 Cities Found
	🗹 Adamów (Luków, Lublin, Poland)
	🖉 Adamów (Poland)(generic)
	Albigowa (Poland)
	Aleksandrja (Równe, Wolyn, Poland)
	🗹 Aleksandrów (Lódz, Lódz, Poland)
	🗹 Aleksandrów (Lódz, Poland)
	🗹 Aleksandrów (Poland)(generic)
	Aleksandrów Kujawski (Poland)
	Andrychów (Poland)
	🗹 Andrzejów (Lódz, Lódz, Poland)
	Annopol (Janow, Lublin, Poland)
	Annopol (Lublin, Poland)(generic)
	🗹 Antonlówka (Zolklewka, Krasnystaw, Lublin, Poland)
	Augustów (Białystok, Poland)
	Aurelów (Poland)
new search	(back reset next

Finally, click *next* and then select *Country of Interview* and *France*.

The *Search Results* count then shows 465 testimonies for *Jewish Survivors* born in *Poland*, who were also interviewed in *France*.

Criteria: City of Birth	than one criteria. If you click next after you select	t screen to begin your search. Repeat this step for searching on more ted your search criteria, you will be taken to the search results screen. If arch results for the particular experience group will display.
	Biographical Information	Experiences
	Name of interviewee	Ghettos
	Gender of interviewee	Concentration Camps
	Date of Birth of interviewee	Hiding, Flight, Resistance, Forced (death) Marches
	City of Birth of interviewee	Location of Hiding or False Identity
	1,601 cities selected	Type of Hiding Place
	Country of Birth of interviewee	Resistance Groups
	Religious Affiliations of interviewee	Liberated by
	Interview Information	Location of Liberation
	State of interview	Aid Giver, Liberator, War Crimes Trials Participant
	Country of interview 1 country selected	Other Experiences
	Language of interview	
	Length of interview	
new search		back reset next

To see the list of these testimonies, click *next* to advance to the *Search Results* page.

Example 3: "My research is on children's point of view at Terezin on the day when the Red Cross came and visited. How do I find relative interviews?"

Click *Experience Groups* on the main *Search* screen or select *Experience Groups Search* in the *Search* menu drop-down list to advance to the *Experience Groups Search* screen to begin this example.

On the *Experience Groups Search* screen select *Jewish Survivors*.

Global Search (54,436)				
European Holocaust, 1939-1945	Armenian Genocide, 1915-1923			
Jewish Survivor (51,333)	Armenian Survivor (270)			
Rescuer and Aid Provider (1,158)	Miscellaneous (41)			
Liberator (429)	Descendant (23)			

Then select *Date of Birth* and enter *After* + December 1929—or whatever date range you determine for child survivors.

 Discound is all information	-			
Biographical Information		Date of Birth		
Name of interviewee		Date of Difti		
Gender of interviewee		To search, specify	y your preferred date	of birth criteria below and click next
Date of Birth of interviewee		Before	Between	After
City of Birth of interviewee		Delore	O Detween	 Alter
Country of Birth of interviewee		Month: Decemb	er 👻 Year: 1929	•
Religious Affiliations of interviewee	L			

The *Search Results* count then shows 10,603 testimonies from *Jewish Survivors* born after *December 1929*.

Search Results Testimonies: 10,603

Then enter the word *Terezin* in the *Search by Name* text box and click *next*. Click the check box next to *Theresienstadt* (*Czechoslovakia : Ghetto*) and hit *next*.

Next select *Ghettos*.

Experiences
Ghettos
Concentration Camps
🔲 Hiding, Flight, Resistance, Forced (death) Marches
Location of Hiding or False Identity
Type of Hiding Place
Resistance Groups
Liberated by
Location of Liberation
Aid Giver, Liberator, War Crimes Trials Participant
Other Experiences

Ghettos			
Search by Name	Search by Country	Selected Ghettos	
	a ghetto and click sea r the Selected Ghettos ta		etto or ghettos and click next . To view a list of the ghettos
Terezin	Se	arch 🔍 sta	rt with
		© ex	act match
		🔘 co	ntains
1 Ghettos Fou	und:		
Theresienstadt	(Czechoslovakia : Ghet	to)	

The *Search Results* count now shows 350 testimonies from *Jewish Survivors* born after *December* 1929 who were incarcerated in the *Theresienstadt* ghetto.

To go to the list of these testimonies, click *next* to advance to the *Search Results* page.

USC Shoah Foundation Visual History Archive		Experience Groups Search Jewish Survivor - Search Result:		
K K K 1.5	▼ ► ≫ ≥ .	of 350	Sort by Transcript Availability *	5 V Results/Page
				P Find Interviewee
	Norma	D. J.K.O.II.	Midea Transacted Assellable) Find Interviewee
Contraction of the second	Experience:	Jewish Survivor		
			Collection: USC Shoah Foun	dation
	Nama	Jakob Horowitz	Video Transcript Available	
1	Experience.	Jewish Sulvivol	0 0	dation
			Conscion. 05C Shoan Foun	dation
	Name: Experience:	Helga Kinsky Jewish Survivor	Video, Transcript Available Language: German Collection: USC Shoah Foun	dation
	Name: Experience:	Thomas Lederer Jewish Survivor	Video, Transcript Available Language: German Collection: USC Shoah Foun	dation
	Name: Experience:	Franciska Pelc Jewish Survivor	Video, Transcript Available Language: German Collection: USC Shoah Foun	dation
	History Archive	History Archive	History Archive	History Archive Jewish Surv K ** < 1.5 * > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > >

Next we need to save these results to a project for use in another search. Click *Save to Projects* and create a project for these results called *Theresienstadt ghetto – child survivors*.

New	Project					
Name	Theresienstadt ghetto - child survivors					
	Share this project	Protect project Password				
Note	Experience Groups Search					
	Filter					
	Collection: All Language: All Gender	r:All Experience:None project:None				
	Jewish Survivor					

For more on saving results, please see the Saving Results to a Project section on page 12.

For the final portion of this research example, click *Indexing Terms Search* on the main *Search* page and add the indexing term *International Red Cross* to the *Selected Indexing Terms* box following the process explained in the **Indexing Terms Search** section on page 34.

dation istory Archive			Index Sear	ch	
To find relevant indexing terms to	vpe a word(s) in th	e Fin	d Term text hox. To browse indexing terms, click on 🔹 next	to a	
conduct your search. Note: synor	nyms for indexing t	terms	appear in green.		
international red	Find Term		Indexing Term & Definit	tion:	
Indexing Term Choices:		0	International Red Cross (used in 1,729 testimonies)	-	
- International Red Cross		-			
American Red Cross					
Belgian Red Cross					
British Red Cross			neutrality of nurses, hospitals, etc., and to help relieve		
Bulgarian Red Cross			suffering caused by pestilence, floods, fires, and other	-	
Canadian Red Cross					
Czechoslovakian Red Cross Danish Red Cross Dutch Red Cross Finnish Red Cross French Red Cross German Red Cross Groek Red Cross Hungarian Red Cross Halian Red Cross Japanese Red Cross Luxembourg Red Cross Norwegian Red Cross Ponish Red Cross			Selected indexing ferm International Red Cross Add > ≪ Remove « Search Type: AND ◎ OR Search Options: Narrow ▼	ns: 1	
	istory Archive To find relevant Indexing terms, to subject in bold red, e.g. culture, conduct your search. Note: synor international red Indexing Term Cholces: Context Indexing Term Cholces: Context Index I	istory Archive To find relevant Indexing terms, type a word(s) in th subject in bold red, e.g. culture, in the Indexing T conduct your search. Note: synonyms for indexing T international red Indexing Term Cholces: International Red Cross Belgian Red Cross Belgian Red Cross Belgian Red Cross Bulgaran Red Cross Canadian Red Cross Danish Red Cross Danish Red Cross Danish Red Cross Danish Red Cross Finnish Red Cross Finnish Red Cross German Red Cross German Red Cross Finnish Red Cross German Red Cross German Red Cross Hungarian Red Cross Hungar	istory Archive To find relevant Indexing terms, type a word(s) In the Fin subject in bold red. e.g. culture, in the Indexing Terms conduct your search. Note: synonyms for indexing terms international red Find Term Indexing Term Cholces:	To find relevant indexing terms, type a word(s) in the Find Term text box. To browse indexing terms, click on rext to conduct your search. Note: synonyms for indexing Terms Choices. After selecting your indexing term(s), click next to conduct your search. Note: synonyms for indexing terms appear in green. International red Indexing Term Choices: International Red Cross Belgian Red Cross Belgian Red Cross Belgian Red Cross Belgian Red Cross Creathostovakian Red Cross Dutch Red Cross Creathostovakian Red Cross Dutch Red Cross Frinch Red Cross German Red Cross German Red Cross Belgian	

The *Search Results* count shows 1729 testimonies in which the indexing term *International Red Cross* was indexed.

Next we want to see which testimonies in the project *Theresienstadt ghetto – child survivors* that we saved previously contain the indexing term *International Red Cross.* To do this we simply use the *Projects Filter* on the left of the screen, click on *My Projects*, select *Theresienstadt ghetto – child survivors* from the drop down list, and hit *OK*.

The *Search Results* count then shows 46 testimonies from *Jewish Survivors* born after *December 1929* who were incarcerated in the

Theresienstadt ghetto in which the indexing term *International Red Cross* was indexed.

Search Results
Testimonies: 46
Segments: 54

Filter	1		
Transcript Available	(To find relevant indexing te	
Collection		subject in bold red; e.g. c	
ALL	Ŧ	conduct your search. Note:	
Language		international red	
ALL	Ŧ	Indexing Term Choices:	
Gender		International Red Cross	
ALL	Ŧ	American Red Cross	
Experience Group		Belgian Red Cross	
ALL	Ŧ	British Red Cross	
Projects		Bulgarian Red Cross	
SELECT ONE	~	Canadian Red Cross	
My Projects	Bedzin g	hetto hunger 🔻	
Bookmarked Projects	Bedzin ghetto hunger Born in Portugal		
Shared Projects			
OK	canada i	nterviewees in Birkenau	
	PQ exan	nple	
	Theresie	nstadt ghetto - child survivors	

To go to the list of these testimonies, click *next* to advance to the *Search Results* page.

Example 4: "A researcher is looking for discussions of cultural life in Theresienstadt."

Click *Index* on the main *Search* screen or select *Index Search* in the *Search* menu drop-down list to advance to the *Index Search* screen to begin this example.

Add the indexing terms *Theresienstadt (Czechoslovakia : Ghetto)* and *ghetto cultural life* to the *Selected Indexing Terms* box following the process explained in the **Indexing Terms Search** section on page 34.

USC Shoah Four	ndation History Archive			Index Search		
Filter Transcript Available Collection ALL T		In the Indexing To nyms for indexing t	erms			
Language	cultural	Find Term		Indexing Term & Definition:		
ALL T	Indexing Term Choices:		0	ghetto cultural activities (used in 1,853 testimonies)		
Gender	ghetto cultural activities			E Synonyms		
ALL	hiding-related cultural activ	hiding-related cultural activities prison cultural activities refugee camp cultural activities		Voluntary activities concerned with art, music, intellectual		
Experience Group	prison cultural activities			pursuits, entertainment, sports and leisure pursued in the ghettos or by ghetto inhabitants outside the ghettos.		
ALL	refugee camp cultural activ					
Projects	resistance group cultural a	ctivities				
SELECT ONE	transfer cultural activities					
Search Results TestImonies: 452 Segments: 592	fine arts games qhetto litraries home movies identity Jewish cultures languages Nobel Prize ordinal works performing arts philanthropic activities Roma culture Schindler's List (motion picture) writing	1		Selected Indexing Terms: 2 ghetto cultural activities Theresienstadt (Czechoslovakia · Ghetto) C Remove « Search Type: AND OR Search Options: Narrow		

The Search Type defaults to an AND search and the Search Options defaults to Narrow which looks for the Selected Indexing Terms, Theresienstadt

(Czechoslovakia : Ghetto) and *ghetto cultural activities* in the same segment.

The *Search Results* count shows that *452* testimonies have both terms indexed in the same segment..

Search Results
Testimonies: 452
Segments: 592

